Across dhe read from the Wilkson's and deun @ vays lived at one time
the Stringerts, Aftervard Lewis Ketchabawimoved from a former place
West of ilson's near the Big Otter to gerv near the location where

Strincerts had been, and made over the old ‘Granpge Hall into a comfovtabld .-
home for his large fandily. Irs. Lewis Ketchabaw was a Coachman{another . -
name which should have a foreien spélling, they say ). I[laria Coachmants
family lived on the ridpe sast of the late James Howey farm.

Jouth of paldwints Corner, on the above mentioned Talbot street to G
Sinden Hill sideroad were the homesteads of John Letechabaw the ploneer
and his son Jacob Ketchabaw, Near the former, a short distance north of
the Little Otter hill, was an. early settlpment of several houses where
Themas /mmernan, amone other early residents, lived,
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The Hatehfamily originated in Kent County, Eng., where they are know
to have bE€eW landouners at an early date., John at haeche(at the pate)
born about 1415 is the first ancestor of whorl there is knowledpge. The
ancestors of the DPayham branch of the fanily came to Ancrica, 103L, a nd
settled at Seltuate in the Plymouth Colonvs At the time of the Revolution
two Lrothers of a large family, Haws latih aad Christopher latth came to
the lardtvines as U. De Loyalists. Doth were eaptains in the Loyalists
nilitia, Captain Haws Hatth was a grantec of the eity of S5t. John, H.D.
On his death in 1797 he left a young son William, IHis widow re-parrying,
dilliarm, then fourtcen went up to Upper Canada to live with his nother
dorth of Little Yorl( Toronte). In route he was with a party includings
the Johnson fanily, and when he bhecame of are he came on up to Long Point
where the Johnson's were settled to see Leah Johnson. The couple were
married and in 1816 came on up to Bavham with two or three of their
oldest children, '

.. The INateh's and Ilitchellt's came up the same day, The pine log on
which they went out to dip water for the evening meal as they made ecanp
is still to be seen (or was at last knowledre in the Little Otter on
Rolosonts Flats). G,

The Iirh family came in the Aupust of the year beforey 1815, ina
larpe covered wason, ‘

Wdlliam Hatceh bad recelved a very good education for that day, in

Toronto. He yags a schoolteacher, and for many years Ploneer Township
Clerk of Bayhan. He lived to be ninety and with his wife is buried in
the Straffordville cenetery. v )

>
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‘ e setitled on the land sinec known as the Wisson farm, and built
his first house north of the Little Ottor at the foot of the hill. Later
his youngest son John(who went to @Galifornia built the long, one storied
dwelling, which with its adjacent barns for so long erouned the top of
the hill, o !

David Hateh, eldest son of William Hatech, tool: up the land
extending fron Talbot street, where the family had settled, north-of the
liaple Crove road. Ilis brother Levi, bought the farm west of David latchts

on the llaple Crove road, :

1

THE INMA PLE GROVE CHURCH

David Hatch and his brother-in-law 7illiam Dowes, are named as two
of the seven trustees:to whom Caleb Cook smave deed of lot for the
“Tiehmond chureh, lareh 1850, Later, the former was the noving spirit
in having the Pirst frane ehureh at Uaple Grove noved, up {rorg Strafford-

¥ille about 1871. fThe buildinz was taken down, moved and re Wit Che
new church being dedicated three years later about 187k.

Y



David. Hateh and "1illianm Dowes were the. p@oue@r class lear@rs of Ehlﬁ
Hethodist church. Uhile "Unele HMllian? nurtured the ehurch by ﬂaliﬁﬁp
upon the sick, it vas alwvavs "Unecle David™ vho. $&t“oweﬁ iL mdtarialiv,
carrying over kindling, bullding the fires in faithful, free service—-
lle . even made the cedar wreaths that sealloped iu walls for the annual
Christmas trees, ‘ ' '

The leading settlers supprorted the church loyally with money and
ax‘*“endanca On thelr death thelir descendants with other ine-eoming

agid ‘ents, took over the work u h then becane a strong and busy
canfrewq ion--- Thomas Hateh and 'gohn Hatch(sons of David), and Levi
Hateh Jr., before they noved dway»~~ELWﬂn Bowes, MHenry Hatech, Jacob
Ketchabaw, John Wilsonand his son Jilliam until the former died and the
latter moved avay---7illiam and John Stewart, William Chanber 1&lﬂ, Walter
Hitechell, wWilliam Yeandle, James Proeunier, Elgin Hatch, becane churéh
pillars. '
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Joseph Powes, the plonecer, who is buried in the cemetery cast of
Richmond, was educated as an archetéct in Yorkshire, Eng. Ilo cane over
tot the Umi;ed States and l1s said to have become a successfvl merchants
“also to have des sirned the first larce bridre at Great Bend on the
Susquehanna ’1vwr, whore he was living at the time he declided to nove to
Upper canadd, Sometime in the 1820's he arrived with the family of his
aseecond i“e, “nn ﬂhccu@nane He was a man of considerable means for that
time and daye. e set tled east of Riechmond on the Talbot Road on the land
receny

¥ 57 “Ao»u as the Riddell farm where he ran a Store and post office.
rack on.the Little Otter family bra&ition said he started nills also..
And in the larpe house he built he and his wife pave hospitality to sone
of the first families as they arrived from‘%Aa Qld “oanbwv, puuqixf theiyr
settlement, some of them in Vienna, then in its palmy days, This house
burned .at an early date thow h a“Lcr Joseph Bowes had died and was buried
in the old Richmond cemet¥y. Willianm Bowes, the son(and p¢0nec¢'ﬁeth@disﬁ
class leader) noved first go ddrafforuVWllc, later to east llaple Grove.

The pion@er Hateh, Boves and [igh as well as other leading families
of 1 aple Grove were closely internarried so that at one tine the cmajunltf
resenbled a l&rge, expanded fanily,

pavid Hateh married Tleanor Dowes
Levi Hateh married llary Ann Bowes.
7illiam Bowes married llargaret Hateh. _
John High( pionecer of nho Ambrose [ligh farm though not his father, who
was Andrew Hipgh) married Lucy Hatch,
Andrev High married Sarah Dowes.( Andrew H, was the father of llrs. Yeandlﬁh
Bdward lloore married Catherine Stewart., ’ |
Simeon liitchell Sr, married laria BEisenberr,
Thomas [Titehell married Catherine Zisenbers.
Simeon litchell Jr. marrded llartha Ketchabaw,.
John Iatch Sr. married Ilartha Chamberlain,
Albert Ilitchell married mily Chanberlain,
Levi Hateh Jr, married Jane Ketchabaw, :
Leah Hateh (daughter of the pioneer David H.) married Jacob Ketchabaw.
lary (daughter of Levi Hatch Sr.) narried Janes »rovuiﬁer.
Joseph Hatch narried Idranda llitchell,
Malter Ilitehell married Clara Crant.
Thomas High married Helen Chamberlain.
~Henry ﬁﬂbCh(SOﬂ of Levi ll. 8r.) married Zleanor Dedn. .
Ambrose High married Susanne Dean,
Darius Dean married (1) Elisabeth High
(2) Hannah !lizh.
Q?y Dean married Thomas Lounsbury (one time tenant of the Riddell farnm)
Hesber Bowes narried John &1u0ﬂ;
James lowes narried Candape Kennedy.
Bdwin Dowes married ary Inman. ¥ .
zactheusKennedy ma-rind theda Keteha aw,



gsamuel Palduwin narried [bbéy Ketchabaw.
John Stewart married Rebecca lowey. - ~ £
James Iowey married largaret Baldwin { daughter of Samuel Baldwin)

The Mills That Ringed Pioneer llaple Grove

Farly llaple Grove was ringed about by mills. Around 1857 David Dean
from Dean's I1ills on the Twenty= lile Creek in the lliapara peninsula
bourht the south end of the oripinal Iateh land and established prist
and saw nills. The long-gue-storied house on the hill becane the i1l
House., llest of the Dean young peovle loved to sing and either they op
their descendants figured in the later choir life of the community,=--
nleanor Dean narried Henry IHatchj Susanned Dean Married Ambrosge High,
indrew Dean tausrht the sinerins school and encreetieally and falthfully
fathered the first then-new ehurch choir of llaple CGrove until he moved
to Ilden. Darius Dean taurht school. He married first Eligzabeth ligh
(daurhter of Andrew IHirh), His second wife was Hannah {(dauchscr
Aness Hirh) Iater Darius Dean beeame a miller at Jordan, Ontorilo.

_ Parther east on the Little Otter was the Leach I1ill. Hoah Leach owned
what la® r beeasue the Rustline farm. Aeross the roadfrom the pioneer
Leach House was a snall red house occupied by Daniel Leach. Daniel Leach
married a va, Uilliams, a widow withdauchters. Ome of thece, Leah,
Ledane the wife of William Chamberlain, There was a legend that royal
blood (Velsh) flowed in the veins of the Willians children. At any ratce
gelsh nusic c.rtainly did, as testified to later by the musical talent

of the Chamberlain family. 7The story is that on sumnmer cvenings the
williaris ehildren in the litile red house near the Leach I1ill and the
Dean vouns people from their eyric west on the Little Otter Hill used to
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sing old pioneer ballads wverse about acEOSS the woods and Pialde, :
Leross llaple Grove to the nofbh on the Bip Otter were the Goodrich ..

11i1ls, After John Fraser, the mill foreman, married Laura (Coodrich the

place became known as the Fraser Valley.(This is the sane land that is

now, in part, owned by Keith Sunners of Tillsonburp, whieh the young

neople of that town now visit &n ski-ing parties, The valley is called

hy then the Rosebowl)e.=== In the Old Country the Groodrich's had been

~entry. iy early wisits wirh in ny day the then old llrs Fraser are
associoted vith storlesof a Castle and a Sir Somebody CGoodrich. The

house also boasted a Family-tree book.

west a~ain on the Dig Otter was the Procunier I1ill. Zarlier, this
valley scens to have been called Wilsonts Heollow with a snall settlemont
grouped about an carly mill. Hotet- The Wilson's wvere intermarried with
the lloore8s, In pioneer days Squire Iloore occupied the IleConkey '
honestead, ¢ | ‘



Early History of the lialahide and” Bayham' Baptist Church
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Orpganized June 2Ist. 1I855. i s

Previous to organization, some Baptists were in this neighborhood as earl$
as I8I5 when the Baker brothers, camuel & Jessie from New Bruaswick settled
here,followed shortly after hy the Pounds & Woods from Vermont, and others.
Samuel Baker soon after his conversion and baptism was licensed to preach
and in addition to caring for his farm, looked well after the spiritual int-
erests of the settlers here and in other places. lleetings were held in his
barn during warm weather and in his home when winter's cold wes on. During
the summer of 1829 a great revival in this and neighboring communities known
as "The Reformation Summer"” resulted in a large number of conversions of
which the Baptist group received 25 new members. Another wave of revival
came a few years later resulting again in large additions to the Christian
groups. For several years the meeting place was Carter's school ( a 1little
building just a little to the South of our present Church)Here in 1849 in
méetings held by Elder Baker and Jonathan Williams, a large number were
converted, and 20 or more were baptized.

There being no orgenized church on this nelighborhood the early con-
verts after baptism united with the /ylmer Baptist Church. But in 1865
thirty-five applied to the Aylmer Baptist Church for letter of dismissal
to organize a Regular Baptist Church of like faith and order in their own
community. This organization was formed at a council meeting held in the
lLesley Chapel in the Village of Richmond, and Reve. J.P. Hall who had come
agong the new settlers, also from Vermont, was chosen as their first pastor.
During his ministry of nine jyears, three especially gracious revivals vere
enjoyed. It was in one of these season's of revival that our first foreign
missionary Rev. A.V. Timpany was converted and his life consecrated to
missionary service in India. soon after organization, the meeting place
was changed from Richmond to Carter's school house, meeting there until in
1860, the name was changed to that of Malahide and Bayham and steps vere
taken towards the erection of our present house of worship. Zlder Hill did
much of the carpénter work, accepting as salary that year £€50.00 half of
wvhieh was appropristed to the bulilding fund of the chapel.

On Jan. 18th 1862 the record says; "The chapel was dedicated to the
worship of God" with a dedicating service conducted by Reve. Geo. Wlilson,
Reve J. Thomas, Reve D.N. Ronlands and Rev. Abram omith. And thus the
Church of to-day vaes started on its way from its early vigorous beginning,
in a comfortable house of worship, with a devoted consrated pastor Elder
Hall resigned the pastorate in Oct. I864 and returned to his old home
in Vermont. ' :

From 1864 t6 1876 there were four changes of pastors, but the Church
continued its growth in numbers =and interest. iAn interesting item in the
Church record Oct. 3rd. 1871 was that = tea meeting was held, the amount
of money raised $85.00. (This is the only tea meeting in our history)

Rev. George Mason assumed the pastorate in I876 and with the exception
of a few months remained our faithful and beloved pastor until God took
him to his reward on Apr. 3rd.I901.

Many gracious revivals were enjoyed during his ministry.In 1878, 30
were a2dded to the church, one of the a pastor of a Baptist church Rev.

W.E. Orton and another missionary of the A.B.F.M.S5. in Burma Miss Minh&e B.
Pound.

But this is not early history. From I900 on will be for the nedt
chapter of the lMalahide and Bayham Baptist Church. May our light be kept
burninge.
formed in I90I with the

d )\ 37 a union was
Following Nr. Mason's death, & iy e g oA o

i One of the best loved pas : ; .
Spﬂingf;gédmggggzgéed to the church for eight years. Durlng ?lshi;iﬁ égrk.
gggsog ecial services were held to commemorate flftyﬂyezri Othg iy b

Dﬁring 19I0 the building was renovatgd and repa1r3 rgnt et b
£ 465.00 a considerable sum for those times. It is iip? b
of & ds'that attendance ahd offerings fell somewaht py fw he haé A
i:ggged pefore the turn of the century. However the membershlp >
to over the hundred marke .
There was an active Mission

CGircle dating frowm Jane Ist. 1886 and 8
1iwalv R.Y.P.U. organized in Mgy 1892. :
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Following Mr. Dunlop in I9I3, Rev.W.D. llagee began a three year ministry
which tgrmlnated because of i1ll health. Religious fervor was strengthened by
the religious revival conducted by Hanley and Fisher and resulted in several
additions to the me@bership; Through periods of spiritual and financial dis-
couragement the christian spirit and brotherhood prevailed and kept the Church
together. Rev. J.B. Brown continued until I92I and laid to rest the last of
the thirty-~five charter members Mrs. Susan Pounc.

' The next few years under the pastorates of nev, Geo. Creagh and Reve
Watts the church passed through a serious crisic which marred the peaceful
atmosphere of this historic churche. But much prayer and forgiveness restored
harmony and from I929 on Rev. H.D. Moore rendered earnest faithful leadership,
resulting in a number of conversions.

In I930 a uniop was entered upon with Eden and Goshen churches. In the
same year hydro was installed and in I934 the church was redecorated.

In I935 the clerk, Miss Amelia Pound was forced to resign after serving
for over ## 33 years. Her sister Miss Minnie B. Pound filled the office
until I949. -

Special jubilee services for the Mission Cirecle were held in Jyne 1936

While still pastor, Rev. Moore succumbed to heart attack in Jan. 1939,

During the pastorate of his successor Rev. Horace E. lest, John D. Pound
who was treasurer from 1902 until I94I, was laid to rest.

Rev. Frank Humphries settled in April 1941 to remain for five and a half
to advance the cause of Christe

In 1943 two weddings were solemmized, the first in 88 years.

Rev. A. Carr occupied the pulpit until a permanent pastor could be
secureds

Miss Lewitt, the Baptist Home Missionary in Elgin County re-organized
the Mission Band in 1947,

Following a stay with us of some two years Rev. J.K. left for Toronto,
to be succeeded by our present beloved pastor Rev. P.D. Augustine. With his
loyal and efficient helpmate Reve Augustine 1s labouring earnestly for the
Kingdoms

, In I952 extensive alterations were made at the back of the churche A
kitchen was added, furnace enstalled and rooms and partitions put in, making
it a very attractive and comfortable place of worship.

Special tribute should be paid to deceased members who were anxious
to see the cause of the Kingdom advanced. Names such as the Pounds, Ortons,
Cohoons, Laidlaws, Abells, Beatties, Phelps, and others remind us of those
who have gone beyond but have left a tender memory of unfailing christian

devotion to their Churche



THE FINAL HISTORY OF THP BAYHAM & MALAHIDR BAPTIST CHURCH.
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The Church,the Malahide and Bayham Baptist Church was disbanded March
6th I964. The last Church service was held the 2nd.Sunday in Dec. I1963.
The congrmgation se~parated bsacauss thers ne longsr were enough members to
‘funetion property. The members joined with larger churches such as Rich-
mond, Summers Corners and Aylmer.

However the Church was not to be left unwante~d as a building. It was
purchased by William Lang,R.R.I.Aylmear, who intand~d to turn it into a
machine shed. Mr. lang was unable to move the building to whars he wantasd
it and in turn seld it to an un-named buysr in Tillsonbureg.

Th~ building is now undergoeing car~ful dismantling,sach board being
pried off and set in a pile, te ba latar reconstructed as a house,Thus
it begins re-birth.

Records of the Church were last maintained by Mrs. Russell Aball,R.R.I.
Aylmer until it was sold and all matters straigthened up. The racords ware
then sent to the Baptist College at licMaster Unversity in Hamilton.

Howsvar the news items kept by Mrs. Abell that appear~@ in 1955 when
the Church celebrated its IOOth Anniversary. It recalls that the Rev.T.D.
Augustine at the time the minister of the Church and that the Anniversary
Sarvices was preaached by Rev. T. Timpeny of Toronte,a fifth generatien .
descendant of one of the Church founders.

What was left in the Church funds and money gained from the sale ef the
Church was sant to the Mission Bgard ef the Baptist Church in Teronte. The
proceads Wware te provide for & "Malahide-Bagham Missien Bursary" in memeory
of Miss Hinnie B. and Mr.William F. Pound.

Mrs. Russall Abell was clerk eof the Church when disbanded. Rev. Robert
Price of Bden was the final minister in the history ef tha building.

The picturs of this Church has bean donated by Mrs. Wil%gam Abell.
an
Mr. William Abell.
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